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{7. DESCRiPTION

- {Check One)
CONDITION Ll Excellent 3 Cood L] Foir ] Dererioroted 1 Ruins ZJ Unexposed
(Check One) . (Check One)
[C Altered 3% Unaltered T Moved 15 Original Site

CESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The house is a two story, brick, Federal-style house with a three bay main
(north) facade and an "A" roof. The entrance is through the west bay of
the facade; the door has three-light sidelights and a multi-paned transcn
light. The windows, all six-over-six double hung sash, have stone sills
and wooden lintels, the latter ending with bulls-eye design impost blocks.
The Flemish bond walls are carried over the lintels without revieling
arches. The windows are shuttered.. A cornice below the eaves ccnsists

of three courses of brick, the lowest of headers, the middle of angled
bricks, and the highest of stretchers.

On the east end, which is laid up in common bond, the double chimney stacks
are joined by a curtain which rises above the ridge of the roof. The
sides of the gable terminate at the lower end with paraphets. There is
a single window between the stacks at the attic level and there are two
second floor windows at the extreme ends of the walls. A later, gable-
roofed addition projects from the end wall at the first floor level and
shelters the entrance to the cellar. )
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 The west end wall, also common bond brick; is blank except for a single
window centrally positioned at the first floor level.

On the south end is a common bond brick, two story addition with a

two story galleried porch along the east side and a shed roof sloping
from west to east. The addition has a brick stack rising in the southwest
corner and a second stack along the west wall.

In plan, the house has the end-hall and double parlor arrangement common
in Federal houses. The staircase rises. along the west wall of the hall
to a landing, where there is a doorway to the second floor of the addition.
The staircase continues to the second floor of the main house in the
reverse direction from the rise to the landing. The parlors have been
remodelled, although some of the door frames and the brick hearths are
original. The staircase appears to be original. In the kitchen wing,
the fireplace in the southwest corner is of generous proportions, with
an exposed brick arch.

SNOIPLIO3NYLSNI

Several outbuildings stand on the property. A small brick shed has an.
"A" roof; the double doerway is spanned by a large wooden lintel.

A story-and-a-half log slave quarters was moved onto the property. It
has a three bay facade with central doorway and flanking windows. A .
small internal chimney on the north end is intended for a stove flue.
The dquarters is one room with a small, boxed staircase leading to the loft.
In construction, the inner and outer surfaces of the logs are squared,
while the upper side has an inverted "V' profile so that it fits into
-notches on the .lower side of the adjoining perpendicular log. The gable
ends are clapboarded. ;
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE .

The Layton House, built by the family from whom the town takes its name,
is in a part of Montgomery County that was sparsely settled by holders
of large tracts of land until the Revolutionery War era and that was
never to see many houses built in a formal Federal or Greek Revival
style. It is remarkable, therefore, that the first house built in the
present town and the focad point around which Laytonsville developed,
is a self-consciously Federal-style house of a plan and form that was
very popular in early nineteenth-century Montgomery County. Lying at
the intersection of the 0ld Baltimore Road and the road from Washington
and Mechanicsville (now Olney) to Damascus and Frederick, the house
stood on a natural site for a small_commercial and trade center. Since
it lay in Cracklin District, the earliest name for the town was
Cracklintown: as late as 1878, the Hopkins Atlas refers to it as
""Cracklintown or Laytonville P. 0.," the first name reflecting the

geographical location and the second the name of the postmaster. Both
names are found in the 1850 census, but in the list of principal
villages, only the nomenclature "Latonsville' appears. Thus, by 1850,

the Layton family were prominent enough to have imprinted their name
on the town although the older usage persisted.

The first reference to the Layton family in the land records of Montgomery
County is to Elias Layton, a Virginia farmer who moved to Montgomery
County after the Revolutionary War. In 1787, he deeded to his son
Uriah Layton, seventy-four acres of land. In 1835, Asher Layton deeded
to his son, John R. Layton, the real estate he.had purchased from Uriah
Layton's heirs; it is in this transaction that the first reference is
made to habitation on the Layton family's land, although the house
appears to predate the mid-1830's. In the 1850 census, the head of the
household is John R. Layton, a saddler worth $8,000; his father, Asher,
also lives in the household, as do the unrelated Mobley family. (The
Mobleys will later purchase land across the road from the Layton house and
open a store there; George Mobley became postwaster in the 1870's.)

With a value of $8 000, John Layton was the wealthiest man in Laytons"llle.
On the 1868 '"Martinet and Bond's Map of bontoomery County,'" he is shown
owning his house and the saddle shop across the Baltimore Road from it.
On the 1878 Hopkins Atlas map, his heirs own his house, the shop and

three adjacent housecs, and several lots on the northeast corner of the

(see continuation sheet)
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Lavton House

Number 8. Significance continued.

intersection. (In an 1872 deed of trust, the property was conveyed to
John Layton's sons, Charles, Robert, and Lycurgus, who were to hold the
land for the use of his widow, Eliza, during her lifetime and were to sell
it upon her death, the proceeds to be divided among themselves and their
sisters; John Layton died sometime between 1872 and 1876, the exact date
being uncertain, and his unmarked grave is in a field behind the house.)

Thus, the significance of the house lies in its being the earliest
consciously-styled house in the area, in the role of the owner in the
community as postmaster and prominent merchant and landlord, and in the .
-town's serving as the center of settlement in northern Montgomery County
and the house's serving as the center of settlement in the town.

The slave quarters came from the Nellie Griffith farm north of Laytonsville
near Etchison. It was in deteriorating comdition and the former owners
of the Layton House, Augustus Lee, purchased it and moved it.

4
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ACHS SUIEIARY FORM

Name Layton House

2. Planning Area/Site Number 14/37/|
(Laytonsville HD)
4., Address

5. Classification Summary

Category__ muilding

3. MNCPPC Atlas Reference

Map 8 I-10

Ownership__ Private

Public Acquisition N/A

Status Occupied

Accessible Yes-restricted

Present use_Antigue Shop-Commercial

Previous Survey Recording 4/24/7L

Federal x_State_X County X Local

National Register
M-NCPPC 1976

or

5. Date Before 1830 7. Original Owner Asher Layton
’ John R. ‘layton
>. Apparent Condition .
a.__Good c. Original Site
b. Unaltered
Description

)

Two and a half story, brick, gable roof, 3-bay facade, flemish bond.
at west bay of north facade.
lintels, brick cornice.

Entrance
Six over six double-hung windows, stone sills, wood
West wall, one window at 1lst floor; east wall, 2 chimneys
(flush), 3 windows. South side has 2 story wing with end chimney, gable roof,
common bond. One story porch at east side of addition, with shed roof plan of
nain section: 2 rooms with stair hall at west end. Several outbuildings, including
log slave quarters from ancther site.

Significance

Built by family for whom town was named, apparently first house in town.
Style (Federal) is rare in this part of county (area was sparsely settled just
after revolution). Location (at a major crossroad) was a good one for a trade
center,In 1850 census, owner John Layton was wealthiest in town.. Another Layton
was town's Postmaster.
The significance of the house lies in its being the earliest
consciously-styled house in the area, in the role of the owner in the

conmunity as postmaster and prominent merchant and landlerd, and in the
town's serving as the center of settlement in northern Yontgomery County

and the house's serving as the center of settlement in the town.

signation
oroval

15.

acreage: less than 1 acre
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|7. DESCRIPTION :

.(Check One) -
! Excellent 7 Goed  Fair . Deteriorated 71 Ruins T Unexposed
CONDITION
(Check One) (Check One)
" Altered 3 Ungitered 1 Moved % Originel Site

CESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND CRIGINAL (if krown) FHYSICAL ASPEARANCE

The house is a two story, brick, Federal-style house with a three bay main
(north) facade and an "A" roof. The entrance is through the west bay of
the facade; the door has threc-light sidelights and a rmulti-paned transcn
light. The windows, all six-over-six double hung sash, have stone sills
and wooden lintels, the latter ending with bulls-eye design impost blocks.
 The Flemish bond walls are carried over the lintels without revieling
arches. The windows are shuttered. A cornice below the eaves censists
of three courses of brick, the lowest of headers, the middle of angled
bricks, and the highest of stretchers.

On the east end, which is laid up in common bond, the double chimney stacks
are joined by a curtain which rises above the ridge of the roof. The
sides of the gable terminate at the lower end with paraphets. There is
a single window between the stacks at the attic level and there are two
second floor windows at ‘the extreme ends of the walls. A later, gable-
roofed addition projects from the end wall at the first floor level and
shelters the entrance to the cellar. .

335§

The west end wall, also common bond brick, is blank except for a single
window centrally positioned at the first floor level.

. On the south end is a common bond brick, two story addition with a

. two story galleried porch along the east side and a shed roof sloping
from west to east. The addition has a brick stack rising in the southwest
corner and a second stack along the west wall.

IJNYLSNI
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In plan, the house has the end-hall and double parlor arrangement CORION
in Federal houses. The staircase rises along the west wall of the hall

to a landing, where there is a doorway to the second floor of the additien.
The staircase continues to the second floor of the main house in the
reverse direction from the rise to the landing. The parlors have been
remodelled, although some of the door frames and the brick hearths are
original. The staircase appears to be original. 1n the kitchen wing,

the fireplace in the southwest corner is of generous proportions, with

an exposed brick arch. '

N O

S

Several outbuildings stand on the property: A small brick shed has an
nA" roof; the double doorway is spanned by a large wooden lintel.

A story-and-a-half log slave quarters was moved onto the property. 1t
has a three bay facade with central doorway and flanking windows. A
small internal chimney on the north end is intended for a stove flue.
The quarters is one room with a small, boxed staircase leading to the lcrft.
1n construction, the inner and outer surfaces of the logs are squared,
while the upper side has an inverted '\™ profile so that it fits into
notches on the lower side of the adjoining perpendicular log. The gable
ends are clapboarded. :
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Layton House, built by the family from whom the town takes its name,
is in a part of Montgomery County that was sparsely settled by holders
of large tracts of land until the Revolutionery War era and that was
never to see many houses built in a formal Federal or Greek Revival
style. It is remarkable, therefore, that the first house built in the
present town and the focal point arcund which Laytonsville developed,
is a self-consciously Federal-style house of a plan-and form that was
very popular in early nineteenth-century Montgomery County. Lying at
the intersection of the 0ld Baltimore Road and the road from Washington
and Mechanicsville (now Olney) to Damascus and Frederick, the house
stood on a natural site for a small commercizl and trade center. Since
it lay in Cracklin District, the earliest name for the town was
Cracklintown: as late as 1878, the Hopkins Atlas refers to it as
"Cracklintown or Laytonville P. O.," the first name reflecting the
geographical location and the second the name of the postmaster. Both
names are found in the 1850 census, but in the list of principal
villages, only the nomenclature "Latonsville' appears. Thus, by 1850,
the Layton family were prominent enough to have imprinted thelr name

on the town although the older usage persisted.

The first .reference to the Layton family in the land records of Montgomery
County is to Elias Layton, a Virginia farmer who moved to Montgomery
County after the Revolutionary War. In 1787, he deeded to his son

Uriah Layton, seventy-four acres of land. In 1835, Asher Layton deeded

to his son, John R. Layton, the real estate he had purchased from Uriah
Layton's heirs; it is in this transaction that the first reference is )
nade to habitation on the Layton family's land, although the house

appears to predate the mid-1830's. In the 1850 census, the head of the
household is John R. Layton, a saddler worth $8,000; his father, Asher,
also lives in the household, as do the unrelated Mobley family. (The
Mobleys will later purchase land across the road from the Layton house anc
open a store there; George Mobley became postmaster in the 1870's.)

With a value of $§,000, John Layton was the wealthiest man in Laytonsville.
On the 1868 '"Martinct and Bond's Map of Montgomery County,' he is shown '
owning his house and the saddle shop across the Baltimore Road from it.
On thie 1878 Hopkins Atlas map, his heirs own his house, the shop and
three adjacent hcuses, and several lots on_ the northeast corner of the

(see continuatian sheet)
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Layton House

Number §. Significance continued.

. intersection. (In an 1872 deed of trust, the property was conveyed to
John Lavten's sons, Charles, Robert, and ﬁycurgus, who were to hold the
lard for the use of his widow, Eliza, during her lifetime and were to sell
it upon her death, the proceeds to be divided among themselves and their
sisters; John' Layton died sometime between 1872 and 1876, the exact date
being uncertain, and his unmarked grave is in a field behind the house.)

Thus, the significance of the house lies in its being the earliest
consciously-styled house in the area, in the role of the owner in the
community as postmaster and prominent merchant and landlord, and in the
town's serving as the center of settlement in northern Montgomery County
and the house's serving as the center of settlement in the town.

The slave quarters came from the Nellie Griffith farm north of Laytonsville
near Etchison. It was in deteriorating comdition and the former owners
of the Layton House, Augustus Lee, purchased it and moved it.

-
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The Layton House

AYTONSVILLE derived its name from
Joln Layton, and the brick honse shown
right was no donbt his home. When it

was built is impossible to state, although it has
many charaeteristies of houses built near the
Revolutionary period. It is located in the center
of the village, twenty-five miles northwest of the
Zero milestone, on less than an acre of land
torming the southwest corner of the cross roads.

The property was no doubt part of a large
plantation, for a deed transferring the place to
a descendant of John Layton as recently as 1885
gives the acreage at that time as 13014 aeres.
The place, as well as the village, is located on
Addition to Brooke Grove, an original grant to
James Brooke of 7,906 acres in September, 1762.
Just when the property cante into possession of
the Layton family the anthor has been unable
to determine. There is a will on record, dated
March 1850, of Keziah Layton, of which John
R. Layton is made executor. This will devised
several slaves, and mentions among several chil-
dren John R. and John I1.

A deed recorded in July, 1885, eonveying the
property to Edward O. Brown and his wife,
Ahnira Layton, reters to Jolmn T.. Layton, late
of Montgomery Conuty, deccased. It refers,
also to the dower right allotted to the widow of
the said Layton. This deed is a conveyance of
130%4 acres, for a consideration ot $1,900 from
George 1. Gaither.

Edward Brown died in 1919; his wife Almira
Layton Browu, in 1916. In 1920 the house with
the original 130 acres was sold to Vernon Fulks,
who died in 1938. After the death of his wife in
1947 the louse with less than aere was sold
to Dr. George M. Boyer of Frederick County.
At that time the remaining large farm acreage
was sold to William Fulks. In 1950 the house
with two-thirds of an acre was purchased fron
Dr. Bover by Mr. & Mrs. Augustus Wilson Lee.
Mr. & Mrs. Lee can claim illustrious ancestry.
He is a direct descendant of Thomas Sim Lee,
Governor of Maryland atter the Federal Con-
stitution was adopted, and lis lovely young
wife, Miss Brooke Conley of Frederick County,
is a direct descendant of Robert Brooke, who
sottled at De La Brooke in St. Mary’s County
on the Patuxent River in 1650. The Lees have
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two children. They are, O’Donnell Lee, named tor
his ercat-grandfather, Columbus O’Donnell Lee

. . . . ot
“(of Baltimore) and Christina Sim Lee, named

for the mother of Thiomas Sim Lee—Provincial
Governor of Maryland, (for two terms) 1770-
1782 and 1792-1794,

The house is of red brick. Its face brick is laid
in Flemish bond tacing the Goshen-Unity road-
way, and Federal bond is on the sides. The
hricks are said to have been made in the garden
couth of the honse. There is the remmant of a
family burial plot, bnt all markers have dizap-
peared. Beside the house there is one box bnsh,
American variety, about fifteen feet high, which
is, probably over a century old. A nnmber of
others surround the house. Kxtending back trom
the main house is a wing, forming a “T,"" two
stories high with an attractive poreh the fnll
two stories in height on the side. Brick cornices
are under the eaves.

In the front hall to the right is a fine old stair-
way. On the left of the hall is a living room with
a fireplace. Behind this room is the dining room
which also has a fireplace. From the dining room
one enters a hall with a pantry. Further to the
rear is another room with a huge fireplace with
crane supports. There is a bedroom on the
second floor over cach first-floor room.
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